
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Rebecca Barrett 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864245   Ebost: barrerm@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Llun, 21 Mawrth 2022 

 
 

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,  
 
Bydd cyfarfod o’r  Cynhelir Cynhadledd Sefydlog (Maes Llafur Cytûn) Cyngor Ymgynghorol 
Sefydlog ar Addysg Grefyddol Caerffili (CYSAG) yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd 
Llun, 28ain Mawrth, 2022 am 3.30 pm, neu’n syth ar ôl yr CYSAG Caerffili am 3.00 p.m., p’un bynnag 
sydd hwyraf, i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  Gall cynghorwyr a'r cyhoedd sy'n 
dymuno siarad am unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i'r Cadeirydd. Mae croeso i chi 
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny. 
 

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr unigolion 

sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar wefan y Cyngor yn 
www.caerffili.gov.uk 

 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
   

Public Document Pack

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 
 

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
 
3  Cynhadledd Sefydlog CYSAG Caerffili (Maes Llafur Cytûn) a gynhaliwyd ar 14eg Chwefror 

2022. 
 
 

1 - 6 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad canlynol:- 
 
 
4  Ystyried mabwysiadu'r Maes Llafur Cytûn newydd ar gyfer Crefydd, Gwerthoedd a Moeseg. 

7 - 20 
 

 
 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Mrs E.M. Aldworth, A. Collis, Mrs G.D. Oliver, Mrs T. Parry, J. Simmonds a J. Taylor 
(Cadeirydd) 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol; Cynrychiolwyr Undebau a Sefydliadau Crefyddol 
 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


 

 

 
 

 
STANDING CONFERENCE (AGREED SYLLABUS) OF 

CAERPHILLY STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION (SACRE) 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON MONDAY 14TH 
FEBRUARY AT 3.00 P.M 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J. Taylor - Chair 
Mrs J. Jones (Church in Wales) - Vice Chair 

 
Councillors: 

 
Mrs T. Parry 

 
Representatives of Faith and Belief: Mr M. Gray (The Methodist Church) 
 
Representing Teaching Organisations: Miss H. Bartley (ATL), Mrs T. Lloyd (NAHT), Mrs C. 
McLaughlan (NASUWT) 
 
 

Together with: 
 

H. Jones (EAS Curriculum Partner - SACs and RVE), V. Bodenham (School Improvement 
Officer), M. Wallbank (Senior Solicitor), R. Barrett (Committee Services Officer), S. Hughes 
(Committee Services Officer) 

 
 

RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

The Chair reminded those present that the meeting was being filmed and would be 
available following the meeting via the Council’s website – Click Here to View.  Members 
were advised that voting on decisions would take place via roll call. 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs E. M. Aldworth, A. Collis, Mrs G. 
Oliver and J. Simmonds, together with Mrs M. Jones (UCAC), Mrs K. McCullough 
(NASUWT), Mr K. Chamberlain (Humanists Wales), Mrs E. Hawthorn (United Reformed 
Church), Major P. Hubbard (The Salvation Army) and Mr M. Western (Roman Catholic 
Archdiocese). 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course 
of the meeting.   

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings?lang=en-GB


 

 

3. TO CONSIDER THE PREPARATION OF A NEW AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, 
VALUES AND ETHICS 

 
 Ms Hayley Jones (EAS Curriculum Partner - SACs and RVE) welcomed Members to the 

Agreed Syllabus Conference and gave a presentation on the progress made to date in the 
preparation of a new Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and Ethics.   

 
Members were advised of the requirement for local authorities to prepare and adopt a new 
Agreed Syllabus for RVE, arising from the implementation of the new Curriculum for Wales 
from September 2022, which will have an impact on the teaching of Religious Education in 
schools (which will become known as Religion, Values and Ethics, or RVE).   Therefore, 
the purpose of the Agreed Syllabus Conference was for Members to examine statutory 
RVE guidance from Welsh Government that had been published on Hwb on 10th January 
2022, and for Members to consider if they wished to adopt it as the new Agreed Syllabus 
for RVE for the local authority from September 2022. 
 
It was noted that Welsh Government have been developing their new RVE guidance over 
the past two years through a process of co-construction that has been supported by 
practitioners, stakeholders and other experts.  The purpose of the RVE guidance is to 
provide additional support on how RVE can be taught withing the Humanities Area of 
Learning and Experience within schools under the new Curriculum for Wales.   

 

Members were reminded that an Agreed Syllabus specifies what is recommended to be 
taught in Religious Education within the local authority, and that it should be reviewed no 
later than the expiry of five years from when first adopted or when it was last agreed that 
the current syllabus should be continued.  Each local authority has a legal duty to convene 
an Agreed Syllabus conference, review the syllabus and recommend an appropriate 
syllabus to the local authority to adopt.  Standing Conferences must take into account the 
Curriculum for Wales and RVE supporting guidance when recommending an Agreed 
Syllabus for adoption by the local authority.  Once adopted, all maintained schools and 
settings are required to have regard to this Agreed Syllabus including schools of a religious 
character, in their design of the Agreed Syllabus element of their RVE provision. 

 
Members noted the Summary of Legislation within the Curriculum for Wales pages on the 
Hwb website which contained the key elements and changes applicable to RVE.  These 
included the change of name from Religious Education to Religion, Values and Ethics, and 
the fact that non-religious philosophical convictions have been considered in the new 
curriculum, together with some definitions of terms and how this affects different schools and 
settings.  The legislation section gave advice on how the changes to the curriculum affect 
post-16 learners, and provided information around the legislative changes relating to the 
roles and legal responsibilities of Agreed Syllabus Conferences and Standing Advisory 
Councils.  Members also noted the key change around the right to withdraw from RVE in the 
Curriculum for Wales from September 2022. 
 
Standing Conference were then referred to the Designing Your Curriculum pages under the 
Humanities Area of the Hwb website, which contained the guidance applicable to Religion, 
Values and Ethics, and outlined how RVE should be implemented in school settings.  
Members noted key areas within the guidance, including the importance of RVE, the 
purpose of the guidance, the intended audience, and guidance around the preparation of 
an Agreed Syllabus.  It was highlighted to Members that the guidance makes provision for 
local authorities to adopt or adapt this guidance as their Agreed Syllabus if they wish to do 
so. 
 
The guidance provided information on how RVE fits in to the Curriculum for Wales, with 
links to the “Four Purposes” which are the key aims of a school’s curriculum.  The guidance 
recognises the need for RVE to be all-encompassing and fit into the wider Curriculum for 

Page 2



 

 

Wales and therefore it is of the upmost importance that the new Agreed Syllabus have 
regard to the Curriculum for Wales. 
 
Members noted the section relating to Spiritual Development and how this affects teachers 
in the design of the curriculum and how teachers can integrate RVE into their curriculum 
within the Humanities Area of Learning.   The guidance contained examples of how RVE 
contributes to the Four Purposes and gives practitioners a clear idea of what to include in 
RVE curriculum design.  This includes the importance of asking philosophical questions, 
the importance of having informed viewpoints and making sure that religious and non-
religious philosophical convictions are explored.  The guidance also highlighted the 
importance of practitioners considering the Humanities statements of What Matters, which 
contribute towards learners realising the four purposes of the curriculum.   
 
The guidance detailed RVE concepts which can be explored by schools and fit in with the 
curriculum design process.  It was emphasised that these concepts are not meant to be 
prescriptive in nature and can be explored and fitted into school settings to suit pupil needs.  
These include spirituality, identity and culture, religious beliefs and practices, cynefin, 
diversity, and symbolism, and these high-level concepts then become the RVE lenses 
through which to view RVE concepts.   There are also seven RVE sub-lenses which make 
up the RVE disciplinary lens, and will allow schools to devise appropriate creative ideas for 
content to ensure that they are delivering good quality RVE to pupils and ensure there is a 
depth and breadth of knowledge within the curriculum.  Also integral to the guidance is 
Learner Progression and Learning Journeys in RVE,  which illustrates how a learner may 
develop their understanding of concepts in RVE through the various interconnected sub 
lenses, and move from 3-16 education and show progress within RVE. 
 
Ms Jones then summarised the key legislative changes across RVE for Members to 
consider as part of their Agreed Syllabus Conference.  The legal position of Religious 
Education has not changed, and it will remain mandatory as part of the new curriculum 
under its new name of Religion, Values and Ethics.  Although the name change does not 
signify a change in the subject, it does however reflect in law that RVE will have to be more 
pluralistic in nature and this must be reflected in any Agreed Syllabus.  It has been 
recognised that not all people in Wales are religious, and therefore RVE moving forward 
must be taught in a way that includes both religious and non-religious convictions in 
schemes of learning and work.   
 

It was explained that RVE will become mandatory for 3–16-year old learners, which means 
that from September 2022 the age range will be extended and 3-4 year olds will be 
expected to be taught RVE, which will have a huge impact on the teaching in nursery 
classes.  It is of the upmost importance that that practitioners and schools are fully aware of 
this requirement and that pupils are provided with this entitlement.  With regards to post-16 
education within 6th form, the mandatory element of RVE is being removed, and RVE will 
be optional for these learners, although this does not prevent schools from providing RVE 
within their timetables if they so wish.  However, if individual learners wish to access RVE 
in schools in cases where it is not being provided, then schools would legally have to 
provide RVE teaching, and so it is essential that schools clearly consider how they will 
provide for these pupils in order to avoid any conflict moving forward. 

 
However, the most significant change relating to the RVE guidance is that from September 
2022, there will no longer be a right of withdrawal from RVE for learners once the new 
Curriculum for Wales is implemented in their year group.  This will be September 2022 for 
all learners up to and including year 6, as the Curriculum for Wales will be implemented by 
all primary schools and settings from this date.  Thereafter the phased roll-out of the 
Curriculum will continue across the remaining year groups (September 2023 for years 7 
and 8, September 2024 for year 9, September 2025 for year 10 and September 2026 for 
year 11) which will mean that the right to withdraw from RVE will be removed on a phased 

Page 3



 

 

basis between 2023-2026 for year 7 to year 11 learners.  This will have a massive impact 
on some schools in the way that RVE is delivered, and it is vital that schools are aware of 
this to avoid any kind of legal challenge from parents, and to ensure that all practitioners 
involved in delivery of RVE are confident in doing so in an objective, critical and pluralistic 
manner.   
 
Ms Jones highlighted the main legal requirements for RVE that should be reflected in the 
Agreed Syllabus.  It was noted that The Curriculum and Assessment (Wales) Act 2021 
replaces the basic curriculum set out in the Education Act 2002 and now places a focus on 
the position in Wales (instead of Britain), stating that the syllabus must reflect the fact that 
religious traditions in Wales are mainly Christian whilst taking account of the teaching and 
practices of the other principal religions represented in Wales.  However, an additional 
requirement of the new Act is that the syllabus must also reflect the fact that a range of 
non-religious philosophical convictions are held in Wales.   
 
It was noted that RVE will still be locally determined and that all 22 local authorities across 
Wales are currently going through the process to determine their new Agreed Syllabus in 
time for the rollout of the new Curriculum for Wales in September 2022.  Therefore, the aim 
for Caerphilly is to put forward a locally agreed syllabus which is relevant to their schools 
and has regard to the new Curriculum, WG guidance on RVE and surrounding elements.      
 
Members were asked to consider that when making a decision on the Agreed Syllabus, it 
should be noted that Welsh Government guidance not only provides all the legal guidance, 
but also sets up the expectations of what needs to be included and considered when 
planning for RVE in the Humanities Area of Learning within the new curriculum for Wales.  
It ensures a good depth and breadth of disciplinary knowledge is covered in RVE within this 
integrated curriculum and offers useful guidance and examples for teachers and for 
learners and outlines the progression steps around RVE.  It was therefore explained that if 
the WG guidance was adopted or adapted as the new Agreed Syllabus for Caerphilly, then 
this would provide consistency and coherency, particularly if all the other local authorities 
choose to adopt this guidance, as per the process in 2008 when all authorities adopted the 
National Exemplar Framework as their syllabus. 
 
Standing Conference were reminded that the Agreed Syllabus is not intended to be a 
scheme of work for schools, but rather a helpful guide and legal reference point to support 
schools with the design for their curriculum as appropriate for their learners, and to ensure 
that RVE is appropriately integrated into the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience.  
The approach for the Curriculum Framework is based on the principles of subsidiarity and 
as such each Agreed Syllabus should recognize and reflect the autonomy that each school 
has in realizing its own curriculum.  So one of the intentions of this statutory RVE guidance 
is to provide the right balance between the central steering of the Curriculum for Wales 
framework and also the requirements of the locally determined RVE guidance Agreed 
Syllabus.   
 
Therefore, the statutory RVE guidance has been written as a basis for local authorities to 
be able to create or use as their Agreed Syllabus as they so wish.  Should Standing 
Conference be minded to adopt the RVE guidance as their Agreed Syllabus, Ms Jones 
recommended that the next steps would be to set up a working party for Members and 
Officers to develop a foreword to transform the guidance published by the Welsh 
Government into the Agreed Syllabus for Caerphilly.  The finalised Agreed Syllabus would 
then be presented to a further meeting of Standing Conference for approval, before being 
rolled out to all schools before September 2022 to ensure they can implement this Agreed 
Syllabus. 

 
Ms Jones explained that if Standing Conference were to adopt or adapt the RVE guidance 
as the Agreed Syllabus, then this would demonstrate compliance with any legislative 

Page 4



 

 

changes.  The Wales Association of SACREs (WASACRE) are also developing and 
facilitating professional learning based on the new guidance for RVE and encompasses all 
the guidance and information that is on Hwb.  Should a local authority deviate away from 
the WG guidance to a great extent and develop their own Agreed Syllabus in silo, then 
practitioners would need a separate professional learning offer and the local authority 
would then have to decide how this is managed.  It is also important for there to be 
consistency across each local authority and their Agreed Syllabus in order to provide a 
consistent approach to the delivery of RVE across Wales.  Therefore, adopting the WG 
guidance as Caerphilly’s Agreed Syllabus would provide this level of consistency. 
 
The Chair thanked Ms Jones for her informative presentation and invited questions from 
Members. 
 
A Member sought clarification on the legal position regarding the compulsory nature of RVE 
moving forward, given that the parental right to withdraw their child from RVE teaching will 
be removed from September 2022 and so there will no longer be a right to opt out of RVE.   
 
Mr Mike Wallbank (Senior Solicitor) explained that as Welsh Government have made RVE 
compulsory from September 2022 by removing the right to withdraw element, there will be 
no available element of discretion in this process.  Therefore, the best course of action to 
minimise any issues and challenges would be for these changes to be clearly 
communicated to parents and schools before the changes come into effect.  Given that the 
changes to RVE will result in a more pluralistic form of learning and encompass a wider 
range of beliefs, as well as including those who are non-religious, it is hoped that this 
broader spectrum of teaching will be sufficient to convince the majority of people that they 
do not wish to withdraw from the new RVE learning.  It was acknowledged that the specifics 
of any challenges would not become clear until after the new curriculum is implemented 
and so all local authorities can do in the meantime is to mitigate any issues to the best of 
their ability. 
 
Ms Jones added that the best way forward, in her teaching experience, would be for 
teachers and schools to be open with their curriculum planning and take a proactive 
approach by consulting with any parents/guardians whose children are currently withdrawn 
from RVE, in order to explain the nature of the changes around RVE and Humanities and 
address any potential concerns from parents. 
 
The Members expressed some concerns that making RVE compulsory could increase 
resistance amongst parents and create a backlash against the subject.  Ms Jones 
emphasised that as RVE will be integrated within the Humanities Area of Learning and 
Experience, this will naturally fit into the teaching within schools.  Many schools will be 
undertaking an integrated approach where they have Humanities lessons and so it may be 
the case that pupils are discussing or exploring an item and then this will naturally produce 
ideas, concepts and conversations around RVE and lead to the exploration of these ideas.  
So in many cases, it will depend on the RVE approach undertaken by individual schools 
and how parents and learners respond to this approach. 
 
Following consideration of the presentation and accompanying report from Ms Jones, 
Members were referred to the recommendations in the report, which asked Standing 
Conference to note the update on the progress made to date on the Agreed Syllabus in 
view of the recent WG guidance, and to consider and agree a way forward on the 
preparation of a new Agreed Syllabus for RVE. 
 
Members were also referred to Section 1.6 of the report, which recommended that 
Standing Conference adopt the Welsh Government guidance as Caerphilly’s Agreed 
Syllabus, with the inclusion of a foreword which will be relevant to the local authority in 
delivering RVE, for a working group to then be set up following the meeting for Members 

Page 5



 

 

and Officers to finalise the foreword, and for the finalised Agreed Syllabus to be presented 
to a further meeting of Standing Conference for approval.  
 
It was moved and seconded that the recommendations in the report, together with the 
inclusion of the recommended way forward in relation to the Agreed Syllabus (as set out in 
Section 1.6 of the Officer’s report) be approved.  By way of roll call (and in noting there 

were 7 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions), this was unanimously agreed.   
 

RESOLVED that:- 
 

(i)  the progress made to date regarding the preparation of a new Agreed 
Syllabus for Religion, Values and Ethics, in view of the recent Curriculum for 
Wales framework guidance from Welsh Government, be noted; 

 
(ii)  the Welsh Government framework guidance be adopted as the Agreed 

Syllabus for RVE, subject to the inclusion of a foreword which will be 
relevant to Caerphilly County Borough Council as the local authority in 
delivering RVE, that a working group be set up in order for Members and 
Officers to contribute to the foreword and finalise the content, and that the 
finalised Agreed Syllabus be presented to a further meeting of Standing 
Conference for approval. 

 
 
Nominations were then sought from Members who wished to join the Working Group.  
Councillor John Taylor, Mrs Tara Lloyd, Miss Helen Bartley, Mrs Claire McLaughlan and Mr 
Michael Gray put their names forward.   It was confirmed that the Clerk would also email all 
Standing Conference Members following the meeting to confirm the details of the Working 
Group, and determine if any further Members wished to put their name forward. 
 
The Chair thanked all present for their attendance and participation and confirmed that 
Members would be contacted in due course regarding the date of the next Agreed Syllabus 
Conference. 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 3.36 p.m. 
 
 
Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 28th March 2022. 

 
 
 

______________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 6



 

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: STANDING CONFERENCE (AGREED SYLLABUS) OF 
CAERPHILLY STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 

 
DATE:  28TH MARCH 2022 

 
SUBJECT: TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE NEW CAERPHILLY 

AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 
 
 

A  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To seek Standing Conference approval of the new Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus 
for Religion, Values and Ethics, and for Standing Conference to recommend its 
adoption to the local authority for implementation from September 2022. 

 
2. To provide an update on the RVE professional learning programme that is 

being arranged to provide teachers with guidance and support on implementing 
the new Agreed Syllabus within their school’s curriculum.   

 
 

B   BACKGROUND  
 

1.1 The Agreed Syllabus sets out the requirements that schools should follow in 
order to meet statutory requirements.  In June 2013 Standing Conference 
endorsed the re-adoption of the existing Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for 
Religious Education that was adopted in 2008, with an understanding that the 
syllabus would be reviewed once further information is received in relation to 
the assessment and national curriculum review.  

 
1.2 SACRE has been updated on a termly basis of developments with the National 

Curriculum review and the development of the Humanities curriculum.  Schools 
have been advised that they should follow the current agreed syllabus until 
further notice.   

 
1.3 In May 2019, Standing Conference agreed to readopt the current Agreed 

Syllabus until the implementation of the new curriculum in 2022. 
 
1.4 In January 2022, Welsh Government released guidance on the new Curriculum 

for Wales framework. which allowed local authorities across Wales and their 
SACREs to begin preparations on the adoption of a new Agreed Syllabus. 

 
1.5 The guidance from Welsh Government makes provision for local authorities to 

adopt or adapt this guidance as their Agreed Syllabus.   
 
1.6 At the meeting of Standing Conference held on 14th February 2022, Standing 

Conference Members agreed that the WG Guidance on RVE should be 
adopted as the basis of the new Agreed Syllabus for the local authority,  
subject to the inclusion of a covering foreword document which will be relevant 
to Caerphilly County Borough Council as the local authority in delivering RVE. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 It was also agreed that a Working Group be set up following the meeting in 
order for Members and Officers to contribute to the foreword and finalise the 
content, ahead of presentation of this finalised Agreed Syllabus to a further 
meeting of Standing Conference for approval.   

 
1.7 The Standing Conference Working Groups were held on Tuesday 1st March 

and Tuesday 8th March 2022.  Representatives on the Working Group 
comprised of Councillor John Taylor (Caerphilly SACRE Chair), Mrs Janet 
Jones (Church in Wales representative and Caerphilly SACRE Vice-Chair) and 
SACRE teacher representatives Miss Helen Bartley (ATL) and Mrs Claire 
McLaughlan (NASUWT), together with Officers Hayley Jones (EAS Curriculum 
Partner SACs and RVE) and Vicky Bodenham (CCBC School Improvement 
Officer).   

 
1.8 The Working Group representatives discussed and analysed the WG guidance 

in detail across the two sessions and have drafted and refined a covering 
Agreed Syllabus document which is relevant to Caerphilly as the local authority, 
and which sets out the main points of note across the WG RVE guidance for 
teacher and practitioners to have regard to when preparing their curriculum and 
lesson planning.  The draft Agreed Syllabus document also provides guidance 
for teachers on key areas such as collective worship and the removal of the 
right to withdraw in the Curriculum for Wales. 

 
1.9 Once completed, the working draft Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus document was 

sent out to all SACRE Members for consultation and to provide them with the 
opportunity to put forward any final comments or views for inclusion within the 
Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus document ahead of its presentation to Standing 
Conference. 

 
1.10 The final draft of the Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and 

Ethics, based on the Curriculum for Wales RVE Guidance, is now attached for 
Standing Conference endorsement and approval. 

 
 
C RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1.1 Standing Conference are asked to endorse and approve the attached 

document (at Appendix 1) as the new Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for RVE and 
recommend its adoption to the local authority for implementation from 
September 2022. 

 
1.2 Standing Conference are asked to support and note the details of the RVE 

professional learning programme that is being currently being arranged to 
provide teachers with guidance and support on implementing the new Agreed 
Syllabus within their school’s curriculum.   

 
 

Author:  Hayley Jones (Curriculum Partner (SACs and RVE) 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1  Draft - New Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and Ethics 

from September 2022 

Page 8



DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 
 

1 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 

The Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and 
Ethics 

 
 

Based on the Curriculum for Wales Religion, Values and 
Ethics Guidance 

 

Implementation Date: September 2022 

 

  

Page 9



DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

2 
 

Introduction from Caerphilly County Borough Council  
 
 
Foreword to be included from Dr Paul Warren (Strategic Lead for School 
Improvement) 
 
 

  

Page 10



DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

3 
 

Page Contents 

 
4 The function of The Standing Advisory Council (SAC) on Religion, Values 

and Ethics  

 

4 Contact Details 

 

5 Introduction  

 
6 Aims of RVE 

 
7 Audience  

 
8 Curriculum Time 

 
8 Curriculum Design 

 
9 Post-16 RVE 

 
10 The right to withdraw in the Curriculum for Wales 

 

10 Collective Worship 
 

10 Complaints  
 

11 Appendix 1 – Extract from Welsh Government Hwb Website – Guidance on 
Religion, Values and Ethics  
 

12 Appendix 2 – Extract from Welsh Government Hwb Website – Summary of 
Legislation -  Religion, Values and Ethics  
 

  

Page 11



DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

4 
 

The Standing Advisory Council (SAC) on Religion, Values and Ethics 

The function of the Standing Advisory Council on RVE is to advise the local authority on 
such matters connected with the provision of teaching and learning, under the Curriculum 
and Assessment (Wales) Act 2021, either in respect of the mandatory element of RVE, 
or the post-compulsory education in maintained schools of optional RVE which includes: 
methods of teaching; the choice of teaching materials; the provision of teacher training.  
In addition, the SAC may advise on any other matter the LA may refer to it, or as the 
SAC may see fit.  
 
 

Contact Details 
 
For further information on Caerphilly SAC or if you have any queries in relation to the 
Agreed Syllabus, please contact: 
 
Hayley Jones (EAS Curriculum Partner - SACs and RVE) 
hayley.jones@sewaleseas.org.uk or 07904 644749. 
 
  

Page 12

mailto:hayley.jones@sewaleseas.org.uk


DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

5 
 

 

Introduction 
 
Religion, Values and Ethics (RVE) is the name the Welsh Government has given to 
Religious Education in the Curriculum for Wales.  RVE is mandatory for all learners 
aged 3 to 16.  This now sits within the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience 
(AoLE), along with Geography, History, Business Studies and Social Studies. RVE is still 
locally determined and therefore, as well as having regard to the Curriculum for Wales 
Framework Guidance on Hwb, all schools in Caerphilly must have regard to the 
Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for RVE when designing their school curriculum.   
 
It is the local authority’s responsibility to monitor the statutory provision of RVE, and they 
are supported in doing this by the Caerphilly Standing Advisory Council on Religion, 
Values and Ethics (SAC). 
  
Every local authority is legally required to establish and support an Agreed Syllabus 
Conference which must prepare a syllabus of RVE to be adopted by a local education 
authority.   
 
The Curriculum for Wales Religion, Values and Ethics Statutory Guidance on Hwb was 
adopted as the new Caerphilly Agreed Syllabus for RVE from (date to be inserted), 
following a formal recommendation to the LA by the Agreed Syllabus Conference on 
(date to be inserted). 
 
 

 

The RVE statutory guidance can be accessed here: 
 

Link to Hwb – Welsh Government Guidance on Religion, Values and Ethics 
 

  
 
This Agreed Syllabus is not intended to be a scheme of work.  It provides a framework 
within which each school can best design its own local curriculum which includes RVE 
within the Humanities AoLE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/designing-your-curriculum/#religion,-values-and-ethics-guidance


DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

6 
 

Aims of RVE 
 
Mandatory RVE makes an important and distinctive contribution to supporting the four 
purposes by giving learners opportunities to: 
 

 engage with and explore ultimate and philosophical questions about the 
meaning, significance and purpose of life, and about the nature of human thought 
and of the universe, and the connections between them; 
 

 undertake enquiries and engage with sources of wisdom and philosophies 
that encourage them to explore the challenges, opportunities and responses of 
human beings in the context of their cynefin, locally, in Wales and the wider world, 
as well as support them in evaluating their own perspectives and those of others; 

 
 develop and express their own informed viewpoints, which prepares them for 

lifelong learning in a pluralistic and diverse world; 
 

 use their knowledge and understanding of both institutional and personal 
religious and non-religious beliefs and practices to think critically about their own 
values and about how they might make important social and personal decisions; 

 
 explore the ways in which religion and non-religious philosophical 

convictions have influenced human experience throughout history, so that 
they can make sense of their place in the world, imagine possible futures and 
create responsible solutions that take in to account the diverse needs and rights of 
all people; 

 
 evaluate and use evidence from a range of religious and non-religious 

sources to engage with ethical and moral issues, past and contemporary, that 
challenge their knowledge and values. This enables learners to develop an 
understanding of religion and belief, culture, community, their cynefin, Wales and 
the wider world now and in the past, which can help to nurture a sense of place 
and belonging; 

 
 respond sensitively to religion and non-religious philosophical convictions 

and explore the beliefs and practices of people in their community, Wales and the 
wider world, and how these might impact their actions and choices; 

 
 develop secure values and establish their ethical beliefs and spirituality 

through the exploration of religion and non-religious philosophical convictions on a 
range of issues, which can in turn enable them to form positive relationships 
based upon trust and mutual respect; 
 

 discuss and reflect on their own perspectives and those of others on a range 
of issues, which help them to build their mental, emotional and spiritual well-being 
by developing confidence, resilience and empathy. 

 

Page 14



DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

7 
 

 

Audience 
 
The RVE guidance in the Humanities AoLE has been written to be accessible to all those 
responsible for designing a curriculum. Those persons who must have regard to the 
guidance when designing a curriculum are: 

 the headteacher of a maintained school or a maintained nursery school; 
 the governing body of a maintained school or a maintained nursery school; 
 a provider of funded non-maintained nursery education; 
 the teacher in charge of a pupil referral unit; 
 the management committee for a pupil referral unit; 
 a person who provides teaching and learning for a child, otherwise than at a 

maintained school, maintained nursery school or pupil referral unit, by virtue of 
arrangements made under section 19A of the Education Act 1996 (c. 56); 

 a local authority in Wales. 
 

In addition, the guidance may also be useful to practitioners, regional consortia, awarding 
bodies, Estyn, teacher unions, religious organisations, non-religious organisations, 
parents and carers and other bodies in Wales with an interest in RVE. These bodies do 
not have to have regard to the guidance, but it may be useful and informative for them to 
refer to it to better understand the content of a given setting’s curriculum. 

The LA has a legal duty to review the Agreed Syllabus every five years.  
 
 
Schools should take note of the following points: 
 
In accordance with the Curriculum and Assessment (Wales) Act 2021 the Agreed 
Syllabus reflects that: 
 

 the religious traditions in Wales are in the main Christian while taking account of 
the teaching and practices of the other principal religions represented in Wales; 
 

 the fact that a range of non-religious philosophical convictions are held in Wales. 
 

 
 

 

More information can be found in the legal summary section on Hwb: 
 

Link to Curriculum of Wales: Summary of Legislation – Religion, 
Values and Ethics 

 

 

Page 15

https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/summary-of-legislation/#religion,-values-and-ethics
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/summary-of-legislation/#religion,-values-and-ethics


DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

8 
 

Curriculum Time 
 
At each progression step, sufficient time and resources are required to provide an 
effective and coherent course of study. As a mandatory element of the Curriculum for 
Wales, RVE should have equity with other disciplines within the Humanities AoLE.   
 
 

Curriculum Design 
 
The Curriculum for Wales requires all schools to offer a broad and balanced education, 
which enables learners to make links between the different disciplines and areas of 
learning and experience. Therefore, curriculum design should draw together different 
disciplines, including RVE, to provide learners with a coherent and holistic learning 
experience, which incorporates the following: 

 the cross-curricular skills of literacy, numeracy and digital competence; 

 the skills integral to the four purposes; 

 consideration of the cross-cutting themes. 
 

 
More about the role of disciplines in learning is available here:- 

 
Link to Principles for designing your curriculum - Hwb (gov.wales) 

 

 
 
When planning and preparing your RVE curriculum you should take note of the following 
areas.  Please see below links which will take you to the relevant sections of the 
guidance on the Hwb website: 
 

 Humanities statements of what matters 

 Descriptions of Learning (Progression steps) 

 RVE Concepts  

 RVE lens (sub lenses in RVE) 

 Learner progression and learning journeys in RVE 

 Spiritual development of learners 

 

 

Page 16

https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/designing-your-curriculum/principles-for-designing-your-curriculum/#the-role-of-disciplines-in-learning]
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/statements-of-what-matters/
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/descriptions-of-learning/
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/designing-your-curriculum/#religion,-values-and-ethics-guidance
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/designing-your-curriculum/#religion,-values-and-ethics-guidance
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/principles-of-progression/
https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/designing-your-curriculum/#religion,-values-and-ethics-guidance


DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

9 
 

As learners progress, they should have greater opportunities to engage with different 
disciplines and to specialise within them, particularly when they reach the later 
progression steps. The Curriculum for Wales guidance tells us that this process should 
be supported by discipline-specialist teaching, which, along with the multi-disciplinary 
approach to curriculum design, should prepare learners who seek to specialise further 
during learning post-16.  This will require specialists to teach RVE and specialists to 
have input in designing RVE within the humanities. 
 
While learners should have opportunities to specialise, the curriculum must remain broad 
and balanced, and each learner should continue to draw on learning from each AoLE 
throughout their time in compulsory education, which includes the mandatory element of 
RVE.  Schools will be expected to enable all learners to access a range of courses of 
study and to gain suitable qualifications at the end of compulsory education.  
  
 

Post-16 RVE 
 
In the Curriculum for Wales, the mandatory status of RVE has been removed for Sixth 
Forms in maintained schools. Therefore, RVE is now optional for these learners. 
However, this does not prevent individual schools with Sixth Forms from timetabling RVE 
for all students, if they wish to. Sixth Formers have the right to ‘opt in’ to RVE and the 
school would legally have to provide RVE for those learners upon request. 
 
There are a variety of ways that a school can provide RVE for Sixth Formers who request 
it. For advice on this type of provision, schools can contact the RVE Partner or Caerphilly 
SAC on RVE for support.  Contact details are available on page 2 of this document.   
 

 
More information on Post-16 RVE can be found here: 

Link to Post-16 RVE Guidance 
 

 
  

Page 17

https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/summary-of-legislation/#religion,-values-and-ethics


DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

10 
 

The right to withdraw in the Curriculum for Wales 
 
From September 2022, there will be no parental right to withdraw from RVE as the new 
Curriculum for Wales is implemented in their year group. The parental right to 
withdraw will remain in place until their year group becomes subject to the 
Curriculum for Wales.  
 

 
More information on the right to withdraw can be found in the legal summary on 

Hwb: 
 

Link to Curriculum of Wales: Summary of Legislation – Religion, Values and Ethics 
 

 
 

Collective Worship 
 
Collective Worship is distinctive from, and additional to, curriculum time given to RVE. 
Collective worship sits outside the curriculum and has its own legal standing and 
requirements. Parents may still request that their children are withdrawn from collective 
worship if they wish. 
 
 

Complaints  
 
Under the Education Act, the LA must provide local arrangements for dealing with 
Complaints. The SAC on RVE will therefore consider complaints about the provision  
of RVE (or the lack of provision of RVE). This arrangement will give parents and others 
the opportunity to ensure the proper provision of RVE across all schools in Caerphilly.  
  

Page 18

https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/summary-of-legislation/#religion,-values-and-ethics


DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

11 
 

APPENDIX 1 – EXTRACT FROM WG HWB WEBSITE – GUIDANCE ON RELIGION, 
VALUES AND ETHICS 
 
(TO BE ATTACHED) 
  

Page 19



DRAFT VERSION – CAERPHILLY AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 

12 
 

APPENDIX 2 – EXTRACT FROM WELSH GOVERNMENT HWB WEBSITE – 
SUMMARY OF LEGISLATION – RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 
 
(TO BE ATTACHED) 
 
 
 

Page 20


	Agenda
	3 Cynhadledd Sefydlog CYSAG Caerffili (Maes Llafur Cytûn) a gynhaliwyd ar 14eg Chwefror 2022.
	4 Ystyried mabwysiadu'r Maes Llafur Cytûn newydd ar gyfer Crefydd, Gwerthoedd a Moeseg.
	Atodiad 1


